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and participated fully in this very, very important national
process, our Constitution.

| also want to pay tribute to Wally Fox-Decent and
Kathy Brock, in terms of working with our committee,
and our constitutional lawyer, Vic Toews, who also
helped us out on some of the constitutional legalities,
and to all the other Members of the Legislature who
participated on this committee, some of whom were
on the formal report and signed the document, others
of whom joined us in the public hearing process through
nine Manitoba communities, | believe, across the
province, northern, southern and urban centres of
Manitoba.

| believe Manitobans have reached a consensus
through the public participation process, and | believe
the final, document is well-informed and reasoned in
terms of the perception of ordinary people in this
country of their Constitution. | believe the finalization
of this report, agreed to by all political Parties, will add
to the constitutional process in Canada.

* (1340)

As has been recognized by the Premier (Mr. Filmon)
and the Leader of the Opposition (Mrs. Carstairs), this
is an all-Party report. | believe this all-Party report can
become the catalyst to developing improvements over
the next eight months to deal with the legitimate
aspirations of Quebec but also to deal with the
legitimate aspirations of our northern people, our
western people, women and other groups that feel
negatively affected by the proposed Accord. So | look
forward to this document being used as a catalyst to
improve the Meech Lake Accord, and | look forward
to all Manitobans working in unity to help that
improvement process take place through the federal-
provincial meetings and other public processes that
are necessary to improve our Constitution. Thank you
very, very much.

ORAL QUESTION PERIOD

Water Resources
Arden Ridge

Mrs. Gwen Charles (Selkirk): Mr. Speaker, last year
we saw this Government’s management style when it
sought to arbitrarily move two doctors from the Selkirk
Mental Hospital to Brandon’s hospital. As a- result
neither facilities ended up with doctors. '

Similarly this year we are seeing this Government’s
plans to pipe water from the Assiniboine delta aquifer
from an area which itself already has creeks, dugouts,
and sloughs drying up in order to supply water to the
Plumas area.

My question is to the Minister of Natural Resources.
What plans are there in place to truck water into the
Arden Ridge area of the aquifer should the drought of
this fall continue and the effects of it continue?

Hon. Harry Enns (Minister of Natural Resources): |
thank the Honourable Member for Selkirk for that
question. | can indicate to her that only yesterday | had

the opportunity of flying over that particular part of the
province, and | am fully aware and share the concerns
of the residents of that area about their water supplies.

While the bigger question of water sourcing is one
that this Government is addressing, we have made
certain recommendations and have found certain
concerns being expressed in that area and are seeking
alternative resolutions to that problem.

| can assure the Honourable Member and the
residents of that area that ‘this Government will do
everything that is necessary to ensure that water will
be made available to them, no doubt with the adequate
services of the Department of Agriculture, ‘the
Department of Rural Development, and all the forces
that we can bring to bear to ensure that in this interim
periad that emergericy water supplies are made
available to those people.- '

Irrigation Report .
Tabling Request

Mrs. Gwen Charles (Selkirk): Although | am sure all
of us in this House support the need for some farmers
to irrigate in order to maintain the farming practices
necessary for the Carberry District, can the Minister
of Natural Resources though table a report with the
details of the. effects of irrigation on those dry farmers
living nearby wells of irrigators? Will he be able to
forward that report to the dry-land farmers so that we
can understand more fully the needs of the irrigating
farmers and how both of them can live together on the
same aquifer?

Hon. Harry Enns (Minister of Natural Resources): Mr.
Speaker, | am more than prepared to provide that
information, but | would encourage the Honourable
Members in Opposition that this is precisely the kind
of information that would be made available to them
in detail during the consideration of Estimates.

We seem to have a great deal of difficulty getting
the opposition Members to begin to examine, not just
myself but all ministries, how their departments are
operating during the course of the Estimates. | would
ask the Honourable Member to take that to heart. |
will see that kind of detailed information is made
available to him.

Water Resources
Plumas District

Mrs. Gwen Charles (Selkirk): Mr Speaker, over the
next five years, approximately $1.4 million is planned
to be set aside in the delta aquifer area for repair and
maintenance of drainage ditches.

Can- the Minister explain why this amount is to be
put aside in order to drain spring run-offs from the
Plumas area and another set of millions are to be put
in place in order to give them water in the summer
and winter? |s this the management style and is this
the only management scheme that this Government
can come up with?

* (1345)
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terms of psychogeriatric care. | would ask the Minister
how far planning has gone in that respect?

* (1550)

Mr. Orchard: You see, Mr. Chairman, let me deal with
this in the broader form under the Health Advisory
Network first, and then specifically under some of the
initiatives that have been undertaken.

We have a subcommittee of the Health Advisory
Network, now the chairmanship of Dr. Nina Chappell
studying health services for the elderly. That is going
to be a very interesting subcommittee to sit on, because
| do not think there are any—Ilet me share with you
some thoughts that are now a decade old. There were
initiatives taken by the Honourable Bud Sherman when
he was Minister of Health back in ‘77-81. From that
came, | believe, formerly the Manitoba Council on Aging,
if my memory serves me correctly.

Basically there was a survey, a fairly substantial survey
as | recall, of what the needs for seniors were and what
the identified needs were in the province. You know,
a substantial amount of the replies at that time focussed
not on money issues but rather on program issues and
on education and information and awareness issues.
As a result, the Manitoba Council on Aging was formed
and | think has been quite successful as a focal point
in the province for concerned individuals. The Manitoba
Council on Aging is not uniquely made up of members
who are entirely seniors. There is a range of age and
location, et cetera, et cetera, of the Members of the
Manitoba Council on Aging. They provide Government
with some policy recommendations and some direction
that they believe would be appropriately taken.

So what has happened over the past decade, | am
quite sure, and prior to that indeed is Governments of
various duration in the province have enhanced program
to the seniors, program availability from a variety of
ways, whether it be with adult day care programs and
the personal respite care programs in the personal care
homes, senior support services for seniors. | mean there
is really quite a successful range of programs in
Manitoba for seniors. In fact Manitoba has been
recognized nationally and internationally as a program
leader in terms of services for seniors.

| think it is fair to say, though, that there have been
a number of program initiatives taken not only in Health,
but through Family Services, through a number of
different areas of Government. So now the Seniors
Handbook, which is published annually, has turned into
a very substantial document which outlines the
programs available throughout the province for seniors.
The Health Advisory Network Task Force is really now
attempting to take a look at the wide range of services
available through Government and non-government
institutions as well. There are a lot of program and
support services for seniors that are offered through
the private sector, like discount shopping on given days,
et cetera, et cetera, that are | guess you might say the
private sector’s recognition of the importance of seniors
to the Manitoba economy and the importance of seniors
as pioneers and builders of this province so that they
recognize them in a monetary way through discounts
on given shopping days.

The task force is really now going to | hope provide
us with some information as to whether all of our
programs are not duplicating or overlapping, et cetera,
et cetera, because if we are seeing a duplication of
program and service, we are not making effective use
of limited dollars. That might guide us in terms of a
central thrust of Government as we have seen emerge
with the Seniors ministry as a focal point for co-
ordination of senior services.

Mr. Cheema: Mr. Chairperson, | think the Minister did
not answer my question because | asked him a very
specific program. The report came last year, that was
in March 1988, on a psychogeriatric review committee.
There were 17 recommendations. Out of that there were
nine that were supposed to be implemented on an
urgent basis. Can the Minister update what
recommendation his ministry has followed so far, and
what they will be implementing in the future?

Mr. Orchard: Mr. Chairman, that question was taken
as notice by my colleague on Friday. | will be providing
my honourable friend, either in Question Period or when
we get to the Mental Health section of Estimates with
the full and complete answer.

My honourable friend might be pleased to know that
the pyschogeriatric teams, the three of them that were
set up at a cost of approximately $300,000 in the City
of Winnipeg that were funded and staffed, have been
operating quite successfully providing psychogeriatric
training to staff in the personal care homes of the City
of Winnipeg.

Given a hopefully successful implementation of that
program, over the next number of months we might
see fit to expand that program beyond the City of
Winnipeg to make a similar or an improved program
or a modified program, whatever emerges from our
analysis of the existing one for rural Manitoba. Certainly
the department and the commission have been
complemented by the number of facilities who have
utilized the services of those three newly established
teams, much to the benefit of their staff and to the
residents.

Mr. Cheema: | do not want to stall things here, but
is the Minister saying that from September of 1988
last year we have raised this issue a number of times,
and now he is saying we have to wait for another process
before he can answer? | think this is the time that
probably he should elaborate on some of the
recommendations they have followed and to be more
specific on the nine recommendations they were to
follow on an urgent basis.

What has been the process for the last six months?
How many meetings have they had with the various
department heads and various other groups who were
supposed to be part of this whole recommendation?

| think even last year we were very sure that this
program for delivery to the mentally ill should be
expanded into some of the rural communities. Dauphin
is one of the areas where the population of seniors is
more than any place else in Manitoba. When they are
in the process of building a few personal care home
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Mr. Orchard: Mr. Chairman, | do not want my
honourable friend to put false information on the record
so | am going to correct him. | only lectured one
opposition Critic and that is the one who just finished
speaking—and | did not lecture him—I simply cautioned
him on not trying to put words in other people’s mouths
without the intellectual capacity to do that. | did not
lecture in any way, shape or form my honourable friend
the Liberal Health Critic because he has asked rather
reasonable questions today and he has accepted
answers in a rather reasonable fashion.

Mr. Chairman, my honourable friend from Thompson
is the only one who is ranting and raving and wildly
flailing his arms and interjecting and getting terribly
upset and exercised because my honourable friend from
Thompson is trying to say, and | will paraphrase him,
and he can correct me if | am wrong. He is trying to
say that nothing has happened in northern health
services delivery because we did not establish the task
force of the Health Advisory Network to deal with
northern health issues.

Mr. Chairman, | pointed out to him that was not the
only sole, single focus of this Government’s effort in
exploring northern health issues and | attempted to
put on the record for my honourable friend’s elucidation
a number of issues that have been resolved, long-
standing issues that have been resolved in the 17
months we have been here, dealing with northern
medical issues.

My honourable friend then came back ranting and
raving about the air ambulance. | want to tell my
honourable friend that as Minister of Transportation
for the Province of Manitoba in late 1980, | approved
the purchase of the first jet ambulance for emergency
patient evacuation out of northern Manitoba in the
history of this province.

My honourable friend from his seat natters away,
executive jet, executive jet. Tell the number of
Manitobans who were evacuated at 400 miles per hour
from Native reserves, a 1000-foot gravel strip in
northern Manitoba, that that plane did not save their
lives, and trying to say that it was simply an executive
jet shows the man’s ignorance of the issues, and | am
sorry to put that on -(inaudible)- does not understand
the issues that he is talking about, and he tries to
convolute any answer | give him.

* (1650)

Now my honourable friend would be pleased to know
that last fall in terms of air ambulance for a cost again
of approximately $300,000 we approved seven-day-a-
week, 24-hour-a-day emergency physician coverage for
the air ambulance to provide safe patient transportation,
a program that was not in place when my honourable
friend was representing northern Manitoba from the
Government’s side of the House. So again all | am
trying to do without offending my honourable friend
from Thompson (Mr. Ashton), is point out that many
issues of concern are being addressed throughout the
health care system, including in northern Manitoba.

The northern Health Advisory Task Force Network
will consider larger picture planning issues in northern
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Manitoba in a reasoned fashion. It has met once already
and will continue to meet and hopefully provide the
Government some recommendations from those
members on the committee who have an understanding
of northern health services. My honourable friend from
the New Democratic Party who says we did not strike
the committee because we did not care about northern
Manitoba might contemplate the answer to this very
simple question. | asked his colleague from northern
Manitoba—one of his MLA colleagues in December—
to provide me names of people with knowledge and
who would be willing to serve on the Health Advisory
Network Northern Task Force. That was in December.
Ten months later | have not received a single
recommendation from his colleague representing
northern Manitoba.

Mr. Chairman, the Health Advisory Network did strike
the subcommittee. | believe the members have some
knowledge and some insight to provide and will provide
recommendations to Government in a very non-political,
non-partisan fashion and objectively provide guidance
to Government in terms of program review, policy
update and even funding matters, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Cheema: Mr. Chairperson, | have a question
regarding teaching hospital reviews. Can the Minister
of Health tell us, that the other day in the House in
replying to a question from the Member for Sturgeon
Creek (Mrs. Yeo) as regard to the ophthalmology
program, if the cost is being considered in terms of
under the teaching hospital review?

Mr. Orchard: No, not on the reinstatement of the
ophthalmology program. No, that is not one of the things
that we are looking at.

Mr. Cheema: Mr. Chairperson, if the Minister does not
mind, can | ask him a question about the ophthalmology
program right here? As you understand that | do have
some information from various groups who are actively
involved in this to establish the ophthalmology program,
can the Minister of Health tell us, is he considering
Health Sciences or Seven Oaks Hospital for such a
program?

Mr. Orchard: Mr. Chairman, that is a possible
consideration because nothing is written in stone in
terms of teaching programs. What | was going to say
the other day when | was answering those questions
to the Member for Sturgeon Creek (Mrs. Yeo), is that
one of the problems with the teaching program as |
understand it is that the Royal College in giving
accreditation because the accreditation was removed
about five years ago now—one of the things that they
appear to be, set upon is not the right terminology.

One of the criterion is the availability of beds for the
teaching program. My honourable friend knows that
the technology in ophthalmology has changed very
incredibly so that—while | am only guessing, | could
be out—probably 95 percent of the procedures can
be done on an out-patient basis. That has put some
interesting constraints on reinstatement of the program
because we believe—I should not say we believe, | said
it may well be that we can reinstate a teaching program
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without a dedication of beds to the program by having
an out-patient teaching program.

| took the opportunity to view a complete out-patient
program in ophthalmology accredited for teaching
purposes at Loyola University in Chicago. It works
extremely well and should we be able to reinstate the
program, and that certainly is an agenda goal that we
have, my sense of it would be that we would want to
reinstate it focusing on the technology of today, i.e.,
out-patient surgical procedures, not a dedication
necessarily of beds. That may cause us a problem with
the certifying body, but | think it is a problem we can
get around.

| think we can be leaders in Canada with a reinstated
program not solely centred around dedicated beds. Let
me just try to briefly fill out the answer too. Some of
the newly acquired equipment at the Health Sciences
Centre would fit in the teaching program. | am speaking
from purely a layman’s perspective, but it certainly
seems common sense to me that with the expanded
surgical program in ophthalmology that is currently at
Seven Oaks, that would offer an excellent training
environment. | certainly have no aversion to having that
incorporated into a reinstated ophthalmology training
program. But | just want to say to my honourable friend
thatweare not even at, what | would call, a sophisticated
negotiating stage with the Faculty of Medicine at this
stage because a number of things had to take place
first.

Mr. Cheema: Mr. Chairperson, we definitely applaud
that | million was given to the Health Sciences Centre,
and that was a big help. There is a serious concern
concerning the number of ophthalmologists right now
in northern Manitoba, and about approximately | would
say one-third or one-fourth will retire after maybe three
to five years. We are not able to attract many people
to Manitoba.

Without this program, which is a very essential part
to provide services, | think we will be causing damage
rot only to the U of M but also to the whole program
as such.

Why | raise the question about Seven Oaks Hospital,
how it could be used in this program without taking
any side, whether it should be at Health Sciences Centre
or Seven Oaks, | think we have to make this space
used in the best way possible. As | understand, Seven
Oaks Hospital does have some space, because of the
unused space for the obstetrical services, and maybe
a combination of the outpatient at Seven Oaks Hospital
and a part of the program at the teaching hospital
could be a starting point. That may help to decrease
the initial cost and | think that will be to our advantage
also to Seven Oaks. Because as the Minister of Health
(Mr. Orchard) said, the number of procedures being
performed at Seven Oaks Hospital, and as the cataract
surgery is done, on a daily basis people are going home
after three hours and also that would give us some
guidance that this Government is serious by making
some of the hospitals for specialized services. That
would definitely save money in the long run and also
will establish the programs indefinitely.

This is in my constituency and | do not want to have
a misinterpretation that | am asking for my own political

purposes, but | think costwise, and to have about 10,000
hours total you need that much area in a clinic to be
in place. The only difficulty we may come across at
Seven Oaks will be that some of the teaching staff you
have to have on a full-time basis and the director of
the program, but that is going to be a cost at any other
hospital anyway. | think it will be a good idea to make
a study in that respect and try to make sure that the
program is brought in place and also at a reasonable
cost so that we do not have to spend extra money to
build up their space which is already available at Seven
Oaks Hospital.

Mr. Orchard: | wonder if | might just -(inaudible)- he
is entirely within the realm of possibility what he is
suggesting because his guidance as to where we are
coming from in this Government policywise—the Family
Practice Residency Program, of course, is very much
a part of Seven Oaks and we, in an assistance to make
practice in rural Manitoba a more comfortable and
acceptable practice for new graduates, with the
additional funding to SCOMM, have expanded that
program permanently to Dauphin. All | am saying is
thatif it makes sense, we are not tying all of the teaching
programs to the two teaching hospitals if there is an
appropriate role and fit.

In part, some of the Winnipeg hospitals’ role definition
may well point us to specific program areas and an
enhanced treatment role in some of the Winnipeg
community hospitals as a result of the Role Definition
Task Force. Yes, | accept my honourable friend’s
comments in this regard and they are not impossible
comments to achieve.

* (1700)

Mr. Cheema: Mr. Chairperson, as regards the Health
Advisory Network, a last question. Page 2, paragraph
3, says one of the ways will be to inform both the
general public and health services community about
the matter being addressed by the Health Advisory
Network. Can the Minister of Health tell us what is the
mechanism in place to let the public know and have
their input on all these important aspects and how they
are communicating with them?

Mr. Orchard: Well, let me indicate to my honourable
friend that the pamphlet he is reading from is part of
the communication aspect and you will note that in the
bottom of page 2, if you know of anyone who might
be interested, it says, or have questions, comments,
suggestions or advice to offer, please write to Brian
Gudmundson. So you know that is part of it.

Now, in terms of the northern and the rural, a number
of the communities, if not all of the communities will
receive communication that the task force is formed
and will be seeking their advice and their opinion. | do
not believe the task force has even ruled out visiting
some of those communities directly so that they can
receive, if you will, onsite information on both northern
and rural health issues.

Mr. Cheema: Mr. Chairperson, | think it will be
extremely useful that if this information is not already
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$500,000 budget at its disposal. It met several times
before fiscal year end, March 31, 1989, and only spent
$58.00. Now rather than say that is terrible, | think that
my honourable friend ought to say the Health Advisory
Network Committee Members were very responsible,
they did not go out there and spend, spend, spend
because they had the money.

My honourable friend might want to read Question
Period. | will admit a little guilt here, | did kind of lecture
my honourable friend from Kildonan (Mr. Cheema) about
spend, spend, spend when he raised similar questions
on Thursday. But, Mr. Chairman, what we will provide
to my honourable friend is the same information
package that | provided to the Member for Kildonan
on the Health Advisory Network, the committees, their
membership, et cetera, et cetera, because a number
of the questions that he is asking today were asked
and dealt with last Thursday, or Thursday last.

* (1710)

Mr. Ashton: Mr. Chairperson, | am sorry, | must have
missed that one reading through the Hansard, the $58
figure. | realize that should have jumped out at me. It
showed such an incredible amount of commitment on
the part of this Government to this much-vaunted Health
Advisory Network.

All | would say to the Minister is, before he tries to
twist it around and say how responsible the Members
of the committees—I| was not making anything other
than the original question, but now that we have the
answer | think the question should be not the committee
Members responsible, | think they are eminently
responsible people. | know of many of the people who
are on those committees and | think they should be
credited for putting their name forward and be willing
to be part of this process.

The real question though | think that begs to be
asked is the Government’s commitment—and let us
not forget, this is part of more than $20 million of
underspending in comparison to last year’s budget,
considerably more than that. We are talking about
priorities here. | think that is the important issue
whenever we are dealing with the health care system.

(Mr. Edward Helwer, Acting Chairman, in the Chair)

| ask the people of Manitoba, what kind of
commitment does it show when you budget $500,000
for this ‘‘urgently needed’” Health Advisory Network
and you expend $58.00? | do not think anybody in
Manitoba is going to be gullible to fall for the Minister’s
sleight of hand to suggest that this somehow was all
of a sudden a health advisory network only needed
$58 when it was budgeted $500,000 to begin with.
Surely if that was the case, that would show nothing
more than the gross incompetence of the Minister for
coming to this committee and having as part of the
budget for his department $500,000 which he later spent
the $58 worth.

My original question, and | still do not think the
Minister really has dealt with the whole framework |
am trying to put it in, in terms of the priority of this
Government, what happened to the much vaunted

Health Advisory Network? Is this like the Health
Promotion Trust fund? Is the Minister going to be
recycling this, announcing it and reannouncing and
reannouncing it?

| realize we are into recycling now in terms of the
environment, but surely the Minister can only recycle
these things so far without either having to put up or
shut up. | mean, $58 out of $500,000 budgeted in the
last budget, is that a commitment? Is that the
importance the Government shows to the Health
Advisory Network? Three out of the six subcommittees
did not meet until September including the rural
subcommittee, the northern subcommittee and the
subcommittee on elderly care issues. Is that the
commitment of the Government?

Now if it has taken them this long to get the Health
Advisory Network process in place let me ask the
Minister this question: when will the Health Advisory
Network process be fully under way, and in this case,
when will the three other committees be put in place?
When does he anticipate the subcommittees providing
some form of report to the Minister or some
recommendations whether it be in a formal or informal
way?

| realize there may be some informal contacts with
some of the committees, but what is the time frame
he now is expecting as we head into the current fiscal
year?

Mr. Orchard: | am quite willing to repeat these answers,
because essentially there were similar questions that
were asked on Thursday of last week in which | gave
a time frame of expected reports on the extended
treatment review being approximately six weeks from
now.

| know my honourable friend is new as the Health
Critic. He indicates that he knows a number of people
on the Health Advisory Network, and | presume from
that he respects their professional competence in their
commitment to sit on this.

Mr. Acting Chairman, as | pointed out to my
honourable friend and to Manitobans, when |
announced the Health Advisory Network, there is only
one bureaucrat, only one civil servant on the steering
committee and that is my Deputy Minister. That was
very, very deliberate, because if you look at previous
royal commissions and task forces and review
commissions et cetera, et cetera, if you take a look at
them you will probably find them to be composed in
the majority of civil servants so Government is
controlling the agenda and | say run the risk of the
accusation of controlling the conclusions.

| recognize that my honourable friend wants to find
fault with everything that is being done by this
Government, but the Health Advisory Network is
responsible by and large for setting its own agenda in
terms of creation of the task forces. We have given
them the general areas under which we want problems
to be studied and solutions proposed. Those general
areas are part of the establishment of a number of
task forces under the Health Advisory Network. Some
of them have been meeting for longer periods of time
than others.
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Am | here to say they did not care about rural and
northern physician recruitment and placement because
they did not have a chairman? That would certainly be
a partisan approach, but | want to tell my honourable
friend that one of the first groups | met with was the
Standing Committee on Medical Manpower. |
established co-chairmen in Dr. Dow and Dr. Postl. The
co-chair, the Standing Committee on Medical
Manpower, they met in my office, that is the first time
the chairman of the Standing Committee on Medical
Manpower and the executive director had been in the
Minister’s office for approximately five years, and | found
that astounding.

Am | to draw or conclude from that that the previous
administration did not care about rural and northern
physician recruitment because they did not regularly
meet with the Standing Committee on Medical
Manpower? | do not know whether | can draw that
conclusion.

| can tell you that since | have been in the office of
the Minister of Health | have probably had eight
meetings with the Standing Committee on Medical
Manpower, the co-chairmen and the executive director
to discuss issues of medical manpower recruitment and
retention to rural and northern Manitoba.

That is the reason why we doubled the budget to
the Standing Committee on Medical Manpower, to allow
them to expand for instance the family residency
training program in Dauphin, to provide training in a
rural environment and the other initiatives that have
been undertaken. That is the largest increase to the
Standing Committee on Medical Manpower since the
inception of the committee 11 years ago by the
Honourable Bud Sherman.

Am | to conclude from that, that because the previous
Government in seven years did not expand the budget
of the Standing Committee of Medical Manpower, they
did not care about northern and rural physician
recruitment and retention? | do not know whether |
can say that or not, but if | was wanting to be partisan
| would say they did not care, because they did not
resource it and fund it adequately. We are putting our
money where we think the priority of this Government
ought to be.

* (1740)

The MMA recently sponsored with the Faculty of
Medicine present, with the College of Physicians and
Surgeons present, with Government represented not
only by my Deputy, but by the executive director of
the Manitoba Health Services Commission, and rural
communities and northern communities involved, held
a conference—and also the Department of Education
was represented—to talk about the issue of physician
recruitment and retention to rural and remote Manitoba.
That conference was a first, probably would not have
been possible in the environment of Government-MMA
relationships that existed upon my entry to the office
of the ministry of Health because my honourable friends,
for whatever reason, wanted to make war with the
physicians rather than to use them and their knowledge
and their expertise to help resolve problems.

Now, am | to conclude from that that the NDP did
not care about physician recruitment and retention in
rural Manitoba, because they made war with the MMA
rather than attempted to use their talent and their
abilities and their knowledge in resolving recuitment
problems to rural Manitoba? Well, if | was partisan |
would say that, but | cannot delve into the minds of
the NDP for seven years and why they let SCOMM
deteriorate, why they did not fund it, why they did not
put a chairman in place, why they did not hold meetings
with the MMA.

My honourable friend attempts to indicate that this
problem is Manitoba’s problem. Maybe | should do my
honourable friend a favour sometime, maybe | should
take him to a provincial Ministers Conference wherein
every Minister of Health from the provinces and the
Territories are talking about the same disconcerting
problem of rural and remote physician recruitment and
retention. Let me tell you the environments are
significantly different province by province, and | have
to tell my honourable friend that we have significant
advantage in some of our programming, in some of
our resourcing, in some of our polices, than other
jurisdictions, but the problem still persists.

That is why, Mr. Chairman, that meeting in Portage
la Prairie, where we had Government, two departments,
Health and Education, the College of Physicians and
Surgeons, the Faculty of Medicine, the MMA and the
communities from rural and remote Manitoba around
the planning table in co-operation, was a positive step
in beginning the long path to resolution of the problem,
because Government absolutely cannot do it alone.
Number 1, they are not trusted by some of the players
that were around that table up until now because the
motivations of Government in the past have been
questioned by some of the players at that conference.

| believe that we have a working atmosphere of trust
and co-operation that has been reinstated since May
9, 1988. | want to be very blunt. | intend to use that
working relationship and the expertise from those
various professional groups and organizations to help
Government resolve the problem for rural and northern
citizens asking for, and expecting, quality health care.
| am going to be very, very selfish in using that kind
of expertise that is there, not for partisan reasons, Mr.
Chairman, but to solve the problem, because if one
mandate was given to this Government it was to solve
problems, not create them, and we are well on the road
to problem resolution.

Now, my honourable friend wants to indicate that
this Government cannot have much of a commitment
because the Health Advisory Network is only now
starting to meet and to deal with the issues. Nothing
could be further from the truth, Mr. Chairman. The
Health Advisory Network is an important vehicle of
decision making and recommendation and planning to
Government, but is not the sole reason that Government
takes action. This Government has taken action in a
number of areas and will continue to do so in an attempt
to resolve problems, problems that my honourable
friend’s Leader indicated in Question Period last week
in many cases are inherited problems.

Mr. Ashton: Mr. Chairperson, | would like to get into
a fairly lengthy discussion in terms of physician
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shortages. | raised it in the context of the Health
Advisory Network because it was referenced as part
of the mandate of Northern Health Services Task Force.
| probably will not do it at this point, but | know in
discussions with the Liberal Health Critic it was perhaps
suggested that we might deal with that under the
standing committee line. So | would be quite glad to
deal with it at that point and indicate to the Minister
that if he wants to get into the historical situation that
the problem is growing worse, and that is why | am
asking for this indication of where the Minister plans
to go, not that it is the only thing that can be done.

| realize the Minister today even indicated that he
had taken some interest and would consider some
action in regard to the case | raised in Question Period,
but | did want to just—by the way going back to our
previous conversation for the Minister’s edification—
put on the record the campaign promise of the
Conservative Party. He suggests | somehow put words
in his mouth or in the Conservative Party’s mouth. In
the election they talked about, we will put immediate
halt to permanent bed closures ‘‘pending a
comprehensive review,” and that was the whole basis
of my question, what the comprehensive review was,
whether the subcommittee’s recommendations were
part of that review, and it is the Minister’s own Party
platform that was quoted at that point.

But | also want to deal with something else that the
Minister and the Conservative Party said at the election
in the context of the Health Advisory Network. They
said in the election, and they were very clear on it, that
this would be the basis of an action plan that would
be putinto place in 1990, and hereiit is from the Brandon
Sun of Wednesday, April 13, 1988. The network of
doctors, hospital officials’ unions—while we saw that
that did not happen, the unions were not included as
part of it but | suppose we can deal with that another
time—and the public would be asked to come up with
a plan by 1990. That was it for the Brandon Sun of
April 13, ‘88.

The Free Press, if the Minister cares to check the
record, reported that once again the then Leader of
the Opposition, the current Premier (Mr. Filmon), said
that a health care advisory network composed of health
care professionals, unions—once again they broke that
part of the promise—and consumers from throughout
the province will be formed to review the entire health
system and recommend an action plan that is to
commence in 1990 and will lead to a comprehensive
realignment of the health bureaucracy. There are various
other similar versions of that particular quote.

Am |, as we are sitting here in October of 1989, to
assume that action plan will no longer be available in
19907 | have not seen any evidence today in terms of
either the background of the Health Advisory Network
with its $58 of expenditures last year, the fact that it
was not formed until December of 1988, the fact that
we have only one out of the six subcommittees that
have been formed thus far having anywhere close to
a report ready, am | to assume that the 1990 action
plan will not be in place, that campaign promise no
longer applies, or am | wrong?

Is there going to be some indication of rural priority
to the Health Advisory Network that we have not seen

thus far? | can indicate to the Minister, | am not
interested in its academic findings and | am not even
suggesting it is the only that can be done. | am not
suggesting that the Minister wait to fill the vacancies
in rural and northern Manitoba that are existing with
physicians until this Health Advisory Network brings in
its report of the subcommittee. But surely, if you have
it put in place, and surely if if is part of the mandate,
and surely if there is a problem and it is a growing
one. Thereis a growing problem with shortages in rural
and northern communities and other problems too
which we can get into as we further discuss this matter.

But surely if there is a growing problem, and the
Minister’s own Leader has committed himself to bring
in an action plan by 1990, surely | would say it is fairly
legitimate for the people of Manitoba to expect having
probably read these campaign promises that were
outlined in 1988 that this Health Advisory Network would
have come up with at least some sort of a report. |
am not blaming the people in it, let us get that straight.
It was the Conservative Party’s so-called campaign
commitment. It was the Minister’s own commitment
really last year during Estimates.

Has the 1990 deadline come and gone now, or are
we going to have this much wanted action plan, | assume
in time for Estimates in 1990 which would mean by
April of next year? That is only six months away. Does
the 1990 deadline apply?

Mr. Orchard: No, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Ashton: So the 1990 deadline has since been
scrapped, | take it, from the Minister’'s comments. When
he is saying no, is he saying no the deadline does not
apply anymore, or is he saying no the deadline applies?

Mr. Orchard: Now my honourable friend has asked
three different versions of the same question.

Mr. Ashton: No, | asked you a version and you
answered no, and obviously you intended another
answer, so | thought perhaps | would clarify the question.

Mr. Orchard: What was the question again?

Mr. Ashton: Does the 1990 deadline for the Health
Action Network’s Report which would lead to this much-
fonted action plan still apply? Are we going to see the
action plan in 1990 or not?

* (1750)

Mr. Orchard: It is the sincere intention of this
Government to have the action plan.

Mr. Ashton: Mr. Chairperson, | just have a couple of
comments that | will defer to my opposition colleague.
| know he has a number of other questions in this area,
but if $58 out of a $500,000 budget in the last year
expenditure is any indication of the Government’s
priority in the Health Advisory Network, some priority,
and if the Minister’s statement that he still has some
sincere hope that this will be brought in 1990 is any
indication of this Minister’'s sincerity and this
Government’s sincerity, | would say some sincerity.
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study of the health care system where a Government
may choose to implement any or all, or even none of
the recommendations because Government does not
have control over them. | am sure my honourable friend
would see some difficulty if they recommend doubling
the budget of the Manitoba ministry of Health. That
would be a recommendation we would be hard-pressed
to accede to.

Mr. Cheema: On a different issue now, can the Minister
of Health tell us now what is the policy of this
administration in terms of alternate health care planning
for the future?

Mr. Orchard: Well, now, alternate health care planning
means many things to many people. | guess | would
have to ask my honourable friend what is his
envisionment of alternate health care, because it may
well fit with some of the direction and some of the
initiatives that we are taking. Then again it may not,
because we may disagree on what are alternate health
care systems.

Mr. Cheema: | think it is extremely crucial and
important for the public of Manitoba because we are
spending, as | will repeat it again, $1.5 billion, and still
most of the people are not satisfied with our health
care system. It is the general consensus all over
Manitoba, and in fact in Canada and the rest of the
western world, that we have to move away from the
traditional so-called acute care situation in a hospital
and move toward some of the areas of
deinstitutionalization of patient care as, i.e., No. 1, to
establish more community health care clinics; No. 2,
have extended care facilities which we have.

We will wait for the bed review report but also
providing more day hospitals, providing a
psychogeriatric unit to the existing hospitals and also
providing some more home care services. The Minister
does not like this word when | say more home care
services, but definitely there is the feeling among the
public that this adminstration is not doing enough in
terms of home care services because that is the one
way of saving money. Definitely these are some of the
aspects that | think we need to hear from the Minister.

What is the Government’s policy, because it is not
going to have a—the results of some of the new
initiatives they are going to take, it is not going to show
in one month or one year or two years. | think it is
going to come in five years or 10 years time. Definitely
we will applaud any initiatives which are going to help
for the further planning for health care. We have
consistently raised these questions because | feel very
strongly that there is a general consensus among the
public. They areready to accept some changes as long
as they are explained very well in terms of how these
services will be provided.

This notion of beds, we spend 45 minutes discussing
how the acute care beds, they are elections promises.
| think the important thing we have to let the public
know, as a Member of the Legislature, is what is the
policy now. We cannot just go by what happened 16
months ago as long as there are clear-cut directions
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coming from this administration, how they are going
to use the beds as well as the out-patient clinics.

| will certainly wait for the Minister's comment after
we come back, | think if he does not mind because
that will save us time in other areas such as the
Manitoba Health Services Commission, but it is
extremely crucial for the public to know what direction
this administration will take for the alternate care in
Manitoba.

Mr. Chairman: The hour is now 6 p.m., | am interrupting
proceedings. The committee will return at 8 p.m. this
evening, and we will relocate to Room 255.

SUPPLY—RURAL DEVELOPMENT

Mr. Chairman (William Chornopyski): | call this section
of the Committee of Supply, meeting in the Chamber,
to order to consider the Estimates of the Department
of Rural Development.

When the committee last met on Thursday, October
19, the committee had been considering item 9,
Manitoba Water Services Board—the Honourable
Member for Dauphin.

Mr. John Plohman (Dauphin): Mr. Chairman, | have
a question to the Minister on this Water Services Board
dealing with the West Lake proposal. | would like to
ask the Minister to outline to the committee the reasons
for the licence being withheld, or withdrawn, that was
issued August 1 by his colleague’s department in a
letter from Mr. Brandson to Mr. Griffin, general manager
of the Water Services Board.

Just to start the discussion on that, perhaps a little
bit of background on that from the Minister, in terms
of why the Government is withholding proceeding on
that issue at the present time?

Hon. Jack Penner (Minister of Rural Development):
Mr. Chairman, first of all before | answer the question
| would like to leave with the Honourable Member for
Dauphin the information that he requested at the last
Session dealing with the projects that we were currently
involved in through the planning process. | have a copy
here for you if you would like.

Mr. Chairman, in regard to the West Lake project,
maybe what | should do is explain to the committee
that the West Lake project referred to by the Honourable
Member for Dauphin is an area west of Lake Manitoba
including the Town of Gladstone and the Plumas area.
That area of course is an area that has been plagued
by water problems | suppose for a long long time.

Those communities have approached the Water
Services Board and PFRA and have requested a supply
of water through some method. It was PFRA and the
Water Services Board that indicated that the best way
to supply water to that area was to find an adequate
supply of water and pipe water to that area as the
Water Services Board and PFRA have done in numerous
other areas in the province.

When the supply of water was identified, which
happened to be the Carberry aquifer, there was a
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process put in place to review the environmental impact
through the Department of Environment. | believe the
Honourable Member knows, under the new
environmental legislation a project of this nature does
require a licence as do other projects. Therefore the
Department of Environment became involved, and in
fact did an impact study on the area and had initially
indicated the issuing of a licence to draw water out of
the Carberry aquifer.

* (1550)

Through the public hearing process that was entered
into by the Department of Environment, and | could
ask the Minister of Environment (Mr. Cummings) to
expand on this if you would like, but through the public
process it was very evident, very clear that there were
grave concerns of people living either on the aquifer
or in near proximity of the aquifer, in regard to the
drawing of water for the West Lake project, and
specifically directed towards the maintenance of a
quantity of water over the long period of time.

| ~vzss some of the other fears that were expressed
from time to time were if you in fact draw water for
this project, how many others will there be and who
-(inaudible)- and also because of the calling into
question the information that had been presented by
both PFRA, Water Services and others by the people
who are living either on the aquifer or adjacent to the
aquifer.

It was the Minister of Environment (Mr. Cummings)
who decided to suspend the licence temporarily until
we were able to—and as | had indicated before, require
or get the services of a consultant that would be able
to look at all other sources of water there, give us some
costs and give us the effects and impacts.

In the final analysis, before the spring of the year,
let us once and for all determine what the source of
water should be for the West Lake area and that is
where we are today.

We have called for proposals by consulting firms with
some reference to some expertise on aquifers, on
proposal call to do a study of all sources of water and
some of them might not even have been identified in
the studies that were done by the Water Services Board
and PFRA.

Mr. Plohman: Mr. Chairman, the Minister has indicated
that after the licence was approved, and the
Environment Department had done the appropriate
environmental analysis to determine the impact and
determined that they could grant a licence to provide
water to the Town of Gladstone, the Village of Plumas,
Glenella, and 700 farmsteads—and they are desperately
in need of water, and it is becoming more acute all the
time—from | believe the Assiniboine Delta aquifer. Is
it also the Carberry aquifer or is that another name
for that particular aquifer because the Minister used
that term? In any event, there was a lot of response
from the public.

| guess the first thing that comes to mind, and | want
to ask the Minister a bit more in this regard, there
were six alternatives reviewed, | understand, the PFRA

and Watersheds and Water Services Board, Jackson
Lake Dam, Lake Irwin, Whitemud River Dams, Lake
Manitoba, Firdale Dam and the aquifer, they found the
most efficient in terms of costs was the one that was
licensed, the aquifer, and the best quality of water.

So | wonder on what basis the opposition, other than
political opposition to something that perhaps was not
well understood, in terms of the information that was
available was not properly conveyed to the people in
terms of the impact that this water withdrawal would
have on the aquifer and its levels.

Whether in fact it was just a natural reaction to such
a valuable commodity such as water that was not well
placed, in that the Minister and his colleagues could
have simply undertaken a major information campaign
to make these people aware that in fact, and the Minister
can correct me, this would only draw down the licence
that was granted 53.6 cubic feet per litres per second,
that in fact would only be about 2 percent of the
sustainable yield of this aquifer, 2 percent and that the
aquifer is only 18 percent allocated. If those figures
are not correct, then | ask the Minister to give me the
correct ones, but if they are correct and it is only 18
percent allocated, what is all the fuss about? This is
the sustainable yield of this aquifer. The sustainable
that means that the officials of the various departments
determine the allocation based on the ability of that
aquifer to yield that amount of water in perpetuity,
forever in the forseeable, well more than the forseeable,
the non-forseeable future, 18 percent. This is only 2
percent, and it is for human consumption when one
considers that The Water Rights Act says human
consumption is the top priority.

So | ask the Minister then: is this information
available to the public, and has he made an effort to
make it available to them so that a lot of their concerns
perhaps could be dealt with?

Mr. Penner: Mr. Chairman, the Honourable Member
should know that the study that was done on alternate
sources other than the Assiniboine Delta aquifer, that
| suppose is the right terminology to use although it
has been called by various names from time to time,
indicated—and | should say that they were a
reconnaissance done of probable costs of alternate
sources of water. Therefore it was our view that we did
not have adequate information to detzrmine once and
for allwhether in fact the source that had beenindicated
as a source of water for that area was in fact the best
long-term, sustainable source of water.

| think the Honourable NMember for Dauphin (Mr.
Plohman) would agree that because of all the concerns
that have been raised from time to time about the
ability of aquifers to deliver over the long term, and |
guess we could refer to the Ogallala aquifer—and that
| guess is the most famous one that we have all heard
about in the States—and the depletion of the Ogallala
aquifer as many other aquifers in North America have
been overtaxed and their ability to recharge has been
far exceeded by human use. Therefore we thought it
would be useful to make sure, to have a final look,
even go beyond the requirements of our current
environmental legislation that is in place, even go
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beyond that, and look once more and satisfy ourselves
that the concerns that have been raised by those people
who made representation through the public hearing
process of the environmental process, that those fears
could once and for all be allayed.

In response to the questioning as to whether we
passed on the information, | think Water Service Board
as well as PFRA staff did their utmost to assure the
people whot were concerned about the ability of that
aquifer to actually deliver the amount of water that
would actually be required, currently, could be satisfied
by the deliverability of the aquifer.

However, Mr. Chairman, when you look at the
Province of Manitoba and the possibilities that we have
in that area as well as some other areas of special
crops production, job creation, we look at
decentralization, we look at diversification, and we look
at expanding our ability to create jobs in rural Manitoba,
| say to you that | think it is inherent and | would hope
that the Honourable Member for Dauphin (Mr. Plohman)
would concur, that we assure ourselves that what we
are doing is the right thing, and that maybe some of
those supplies of water we currently hold underground
would best meet the need for future development.

* (1600)

Human needs should always be first and foremost,
but if there are large bodies of water such as Lake
Manitoba holds that could be used and accessed, even
if we spend a bit more money originally to put the
system in place, over the long term it might be by far
the most economical thing to do.

That is where we are at today. | believe itis important
that Manitobans do everything possible to ensure that
we will not damage, No. 1, our ground water supply,
whether it is the maintenance to recharge aquifers or
whether it is to damaging some other way through
polluting or contaminating. | think it is important that
we do those kinds of studies to satisfy ourselves that
what we do that will affect—and remember once you
tap that aquifer and build a pipeline, you can in fact
draw water out of that area for a hundred years or
more. | think those are the kinds of things we must
consider before we embark on a project of the
magnitude that we are considering, and | realize full
well, as do my colleagues, the difficulty that this has
put the residents of the Plumas-Gladstone area in.
Thereforeweputin place an amount of money, a quarter
of a million dollars, that would be put in place for a
trucking assistance program if it can be matched by
the federal Government.

Remember, Mr. Chairman, up to now agriculture water
has been provided by PFRA and last year the federal
Government through PFRA initiated a trucking program,
an assistance program for farmers to supply water for
their needs, both domestic and agricultural, to maintain
their livestock herds. This year, we, because of action
that we took here, decided that we as a province would
get involved in making sure that the impact of our
decision was not only incurred by those that we had
made the decision about. | would hope that the
Honourable Member for Dauphin (Mr. Plohman) would

concur that the decision that we are making is the right
one in the long term, the best one, and if in the final
analysis the Assiniboine Delta aquifer is the one that
we must access for a supply, then so be it. My colleagues
and | were simply not satisfied that the information we
had was adequate to ensure that there were not other
sources of water that could be accessed as
economically or close to and over the long term might
be, in fact, a better source.

Mr. Piohman: Mr. Chairman, this is an area that could
be examined for some time and, of course, there is
not, because of the limits on Estimates discussion, as
much time as | would like, but certainly | want to express
surprise that the Government, if matched by the federal
Government, will be spending a quarter of a million
dollars for hauling water. The people there are
desperately in need of water. Some 700 farms are
affected, and because of the drought it is a very difficult
situation for them.

| say, certainly it is important and it is good that the
Government is willing to help, but the fact is that is
not the long-term solution and the Minister knows it,
so what he is doing is spending more money than he
should be in this Government because he is not able
to put in a long-term solution in a timely way. The
studying has been done for—well, the Member for
Gladstone (Mrs. Oleson) asked, what did we do? There
were major studies undertaken since 1980, and they
did examine six different alternatives. Rhetorically to
the Member for Gladstone (Mrs. Oleson), whose
constituency, whose Town of Gladstone is affected—
but of course other areas of her constituency are
affected on the other side, and | know the dilemma
she must face on this issue. But | ask the Minister then,
with those studies done, is he not to believe that they
provided the kind of information that is required to
make these decisions? That is the basis for most of
the decisions that are made by the studies that are
undertaken by these groups. They have the best
qualified people.

The environmental studies were also undertaken by
the Minister of Environment’s Department, and the cost
analysis was done, and the Minister is talking about
Lake Manitoba. What they said about Lake Manitoba
is this was the most expensive option and the poorest
quality of water; and the Hummerston Exit for the
Assiniboine Delta aquifer would be about $8,338,000,
and the Lake Manitoba would be $12,419,000, at least
50 percent greater cost. So what is the Minister saying
here? If those costs are correct, by far the most efficient
way of doing this would be by the aquifer; and
secondly—she asks us, just ask my brother, because
she is worried about Glenboro. The fact is—and if |
am wrong | want the Minister to correct me— 18 percent
only of that aquifer is allocated. This is on a sustainable
basis. This is not that you take it out, 18 percent, and
then there is 18 percent less water in there. You can
get it up to 100 percent allocated and still have that
aquifer exist for hundreds of years—90 percent or
whatever allocated. That is on a sustainable basis, so
what is the Minister trying to tell us? We are talking
about 2 percent here for this operation, for this
project—2 percent only.
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The people are in desperate need there. We saw
these people speaking on television; we have talked
with them; we know they are in desperate need. So
what is the Minister trying to do? He is talking about
2 percent allocation more above the 18 percent. He is
talking about industrial development and greater job
creation. Sure, that is great, but we are talking from
18 percent to 20 percent allocated. Then we have 80
percent left for all of these other good things that the
Minister talked about. So are my figures wrong on this?

Mr. Penner: Mr. Chairman, your figures are correct in
one sense. The figures that you have are estimates
done on those areas that were seen as secondary
options.- (interjection)- My colleagues and | are not
satisfied that the costing done on optional sources of
water were adequate and adequately done. Water
Services Board will tell you that they did a
reconnaissance of possibility and did some estimating
as to costs of those other options.

It was deemed at that time that the Assiniboine Delta
had enoughyield to supply that area, and | think nobody
has called that into question, whether it in fact does
not yield enough water currently.

* (1610)

However, which area is going to be next? Do we say
no to them? If you say yes to one to draw water out
of the aquifer and pipe it to a community 25 miles down
the road, which community will be next? Morden,
Winkler, Altona? Will they be the next ones? Winkler’s
aquifer is being overdrawn annually now, and | say to
you that adequate studies should have been done
before on that aquifer before the overdrawing of that
aquifer actually occurred. Which one is going to be
next?

For that reason, we took it upon ourselves to take
another look to make sure that the costs of alternate
sources or optional sources were done adequately; that
we could tell the people over in the area these are
going to be your long-term costs, these are going to
be your ongoing costs without question. Certainly | am
sure the Member for Dauphin (Mr. Plohman) would
concur that when the Minister or the Minister’s staff
meets with those communities, and say these are going
to be your costs because they will not be borne by the
province or by the federal Government, some of these
costs must be carried by individuals in those
communities as they have been in other areas. When
farmers have to put their hands in their pocket and
pay beyond $5,000 to put a pipeline, a pipe to connect
their household taps or their livestock sources of water,
they want to know what costs are going to be incurred
annually to supply those waters.

| do not believe that we had adequately done studies
that we could go out there with assurance and say
these are going to be your costs and this is what we
would estimate your long-term costs would be.

Therefore, Mr. Chairman, | believe that we owed it
not only to the people of the Gladstone-Plumas area
but to all Manitobans to assure ourselves that we would
in fact be providing water from a source that would
have long-term sustainability.

| believe that it would also be remiss of me not to
say that even if we had said that we would proceed
with the project this year, that we would not have been
able to start construction early enough after the
environmental assessment was done to bring water to
that area. Therefore we would have had to in my view
support, through some sort of assistance program, the
trucking of water into that area for this coming year.

If we can get the studies done adequately and on
time maybe for next year we can start construction
early enough on a system that will allow us to deliver
water to at least some of those people and bring water
closer to those people.

That is where we are today and that is what our
concerns have been. | hope that the Honourable
Member is not going to sit here and say we should
not do the kind of study, we should not insure ourselves;
that he is saying go ahead, plow ahead and throw
caution to the wind and pay no attention to 1,100 people
who have said, “be careful.” So we listen to 1,100
people from that area, and we are going to be somewhat
careful before we proceed. We are going to be
adequately assured before we source any area for water.
Maybe what | could do, Mr. Chairman, if you would
allow, | would ask the Minister of Environment (Mr.
Cummings) to make a few comments as to why some
of these things in fact happen.

Mr. Plohman: | would like to respond to the Minister
and then the Minister of Environment maybe wants to
respond to what | have to say plus what the Minister
has to say, so it will be more encompassing for him.
| am sure he will want to respond to my first statement
that here the Minister is talking about me proposing,
advocating, that we want him to throw caution to the
wind and go recklessly forward without doing the proper
studies.

The fact is these studies have been done. There is
information here that demonstrates, and the Minister
has not refuted those studies. The studies have been
done on the alternatives. The costs have been
determined. The Minister of Natural Resources (Mr.
Enns) has excellent staff who know exactly what kind
of water and how much is available in those aquifers.
They have been doing these testings for years.

Yes, the Winkler aquifer has been cverallocated, and
it has been for years, because there was not proper
planning years and years before. The fact is, we have
a situation here where those same experts are saying,
no, this aquifer is not overallocated, it is not even close
to being overallocated, it is only at 18 percent, and
what we are talking about here is 2 percent. We are
talking about desperate needs.

Surely whatever system the Minister comes up with
or the government comes up with in terms of priorities
as to how water should be allocated would place this
high on the list. If they do not, they should amend The
Water Rights Act and say, no, human consumption
should not be the top priority, if they do not agree with
that. It is there, it is in the Act and the Minister is in
essence violating that when he delays on this project
because that is the top priority. | say to the Minister,
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he should consider very carefully if he is or is not
violating that particular Act when he holds back on
water for human consumption while holding it for other
means, when The Water Rights Act states human
consumption is the top priority.

| ask the Minister and the Minister of Environment
if he is going to respond to and perhapsindicate whether
in fact those studies that have been done reflect the
actual costs? Do they reflect the problems associated
with Lake Manitoba water that would be the alternative
that the Minister has talked about? He referred to Lake
Manitoba, $12.4 million for a pipeline, poor water that
needs water treatment. Surely the additional costs
would be tremendous. Who would have to bear them?
The local communities—are they going to be expected
to put up this extra money under those circumstances?
is it a fact that only 18 percent of this aquifer has been
allocated and only 2 percent additional would be
required to meet this need?

Hon. Glen Cummings (Minister of Environment):
Because this is the Department of Rural Development,
and certainly the Minister for Rural Development is quite
capable of answering the question, but because | am
the Minister who suspended the licence for the
Assiniboine delta aquifer, the licence for the wellsite,
| would like to put a couple of words on the record to
clarify the thought process that went into that. Quite
frankly when you look at some of the concerns that
are raised in this Legislature regarding whether or not
environmental hearings should or should not be held,
whether or not their hearings should be put in place
of certain planning processes that are required.

There has been quite a lot of work done on the
opposition benches, for example, regarding a bridge
on the end of Moray Street as to whether or not it
should have an environmental impact study, whether
or not the development over Omand’s Creek should
have an environmental impact study. There are some
legitimate questions about whether or not these are
planning issues or whether they are environmental
issues. This issue, | think, while it was one of the first
times the Water Services Board has been required to
subject a project to the Clean Environment Commission
hearing. What it did by putting it before the Clean
Environment Commission hearing was raise the broad
issues of water allocation and priorization across the
province.

There was a problem out there that | think the
Member for Dauphin probably fully realizes was there,
from his previous experience. So he, along with us,
has to consider the fact that Governments for years
have not perhaps spent enough time looking at the
broad-based needs for water supply across this
province. | think he also knows that certainly there has
been some plan that indicates the Assiniboine Delta
aquifer could in fact be the hub of a centre water supply
for a major portion of the province, and certainly to
have accepted this project carte blanche would
probably have entailed the acceptance of that principle
as well.

* (1620)

If there is to be some original blame that needs to
be laid in this situation perhaps it should be right here

where | stand, Mr. Chairman, because perhaps we did
not scope the hearings widely enough when we asked
them to examine this issue, because we asked them
to examine this wellsite and the amount of water it
would pump. What happened was at the hearings they
had concerns and reservations that were raised that
had nothing particularly to do with this wellsite, but
indicated a far broader concern on principles and policy
of water service across this province -(interjection)-
exactly. The Clean Environment Commission then made
its report to the Department of Environment, which
stated that this particular wellsite, in their opinion, had
a particular ability to produce water that would satisfy
the demands of the pipeline.

| know the Member for Dauphin (Mr. Plohman)
understands the process, but | want it put clearly on
the record that the Clean Environment Commission
reports to the Department of Environment, and they
were issued a director’s permit. The way the legislation
is written, the Minister of Environment and Cabinet and
the Lieutenant-Governor-in-Council are the appeal to
that permit. So the process worked as the legislation
was laid out.

| was the appeal to that licence. We have not
withdrawn the licence. We have however suspended
that licence during the period we are using to gather
further information regarding the supply of water from
Lake Manitoba.

Mr. Chairman, there are a lot of things | could put
on the record regarding the alternate supplies of water.
| believe this project was brought forward very carefully
with the idea that water supply from the alternate
sources was priced, but not necessarily priced in a
precise manner as to what the costs would be.

| think there are other things that need to be
considered out there, and | am sure the Member for
Dauphin (Mr. Plohman) and the Member for Selkirk
(Mrs. Charles), who have both raised this issue, might
want to consider.

There is a water treatment plant in Gladstone. Where
it gets its water however is the question. They maintain
the water they are getting out of the White Mud river
is not adequate, that it is too costly to treat. Almost
every small town in this province this summer had lousy
water, unless they were in the eastern part of the
province.

You cannot deny that towns such as Rivers—and |
had a personal opportunity to observe their problems
where they are taking water out of a fairly large reservoir
but taking it out of the bottom, that water in dry periods
is absolutely rotten. It would cause you to upchuck your
cookies, if you will, to stand near the outfall into the
creek at Rivers after that water has sat in that lake
during a dry period. That is the problem every other
community in this province has had to face along with
the community of Gladstone.

The question is whether or not there is enough water
coming down the river as well. That water is supplied
from the outfall of the aquifer after it comes through
the upper end of the Whitemud and out of the Lake
Irwin reservoir.
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So there were clearly a number of issues that were
raised. Those issues, | think, and viewed in the time
frame that the Minister just referred to a few minutes
ago, indicate that it was wise to have some further
consideration of the options. This is not in any way to
be seen as a lack of willingness on our part to make
sure that water is supplied into that area.

| think, however, you also have to remember that we
are talking originally about agricultural supply. All of a
sudden, the project, as it developed, was one of
personal and household supply.

| guess my comments have now exceeded perhaps
those concerns of the Environment Minister because
| live directly in that area. The people in Plumas are
my friends, and if you think that | made the choice |
did on this one for any other reason than environmental
and policy concerns, then certainly | can show you the
opposite.

There is a concern to get water into that area. It has
been identified as one of the hardest areas to supply.
We have made our commitment through the Minister
of Rural Development (Mr. Penner) that we will make
that supply, that the decision will be made, but | think
at this point it is very supportable in light of
environmental concerns.

| would just indicate one other thing. That the degree
of concern that was raised in the petitions that came
to me as the appeal to this licence, the ones that carried
the most weight to me were smaller in numbers. There
were a large number who simply said: ‘‘do not pump
out of the aquifer”.

There were however, a significant number of appeals
that came forward that said: ‘“‘consider carefully what
you are doing—Ilong-term export out of aquifers;
consider carefully carefully whether or not there is
enough known; consider carefully the impacts of future
on future plans of the decision that is made today.”

| think that while it is always frustrating to see
Governments that are not acting as quick as they would
like to, and it is ever more frustrating for the Members
of that Government, but by next spring, | can assure
you that decisions will be made and progress will be
evident.

Mr. Plohman: Mr. Chairman, in interest of time, | will
conclude my remarks on this issue, and to just indicate
to the Minister and to his colleague, we may have
another opportunity in the Environment Estimates to
discuss this further, but clearly we are going to be very
interested in this issue | can indicate to the Members.

We are talking about 2 percent here. We are talking
about human consumption, and | believe that the
Minister of Environment (Mr. Cummings) made my point
when he said that the aquifers is huge and may supply
the better part of the province. That means that is all
the more reason why the ownership does not lie in
those communities that happen to sit directly above
the aquifer or on parts that were known or used in the
past. That ownership is much broader than that, and
they cannot be selfish about it and say, “this is our
water”’.

This is something like offshore fisheries and so on
after the 12 mile limit, and | think that the other
communities have just as much right to that water as
those people who are already drawing from it. Those
communities—and that is the dilemma that the
Government perhaps wants to wrestle with in terms of
how they are going to allocate, but | say look at your
Water Rights Act. You know that human consumption
is top priority; you also know that this is only 2 percent,
and surely in the desperate need that some have that
this project could have proceeded while the planning
that this Minister talks about—the long-term
implications of works further applications of aquifers-
is determined in terms of priorities. That could be done
at the same time. We are only talking about a small
amount here, but | will leave that, Mr. Chairman, at this
particular time and just to indicate that we will be raising
these issues in the future.

Mrs. Gwen Charles (Selkirk): | realize that time is
short, but having come in in just the last section of
this discussion, | just want to put on the record that
there are many reasons for not pumping out of the
aquifer as there are for pumping out of the aquifer,
and | hope the studies and time taken to improve the
monitoring of the aquifer will pay off. Because if you
lower the aquifer too far, you will not have the recharging
of the streams, the dugouts, the wetlands, and so forth.

| would point out as well then that there are
reservations that apparently have pipelines out in Lake
Manitoba that are filtering the water and maintaining
a good water supply for themselves. So there are
alternatives, and that we cannot rush into this decision,
but understanding that it is more environmental, |
withhold further comments until that process takes
place.

Mr. Penner: Mr. Chairman, | appreciate that comment
very much. Those of us that live in areas that do not
have the luxury of just punching holes in the ground
and drawing water up realize what that statement
means. Those of us that have to, for instance, take
their water supply out of the Red River. | realize full
well what it means to have costly water; what costly
treatments are because that is the only source of water
that some of our communities in this province have,
and similarly | recognize the reference that the Minister
of Environment (Mr. Cummings) maices when he says
that you in fact could almost virtually upchuck your
cookies when you drain soms of these reservoirs that
have been stagnant for long periods of time, especially
after a long hot summer without any recharge of fresh
water into them. That happened only a very short period
of time ago to our community when in fact our source
from the river was jeopardized and we had to draw
from the reservoir that has been built to supply water
in periods of time when we do run into trouble, and
it was simply unusabie. i specifically recognize full weil
what some of these communities are up against and
what quality of water means over the long haul. If there
are other sources that are accessible, even if they are
a bit more costly in the short term, maybe those are
the kinds of considerations that we should make.

* (1630)
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Mr. Gilles Roch (Springfield): Mr. Chairman, if | may,
on page 56 -(interjection)-

Me. Chairman: Order, please.

ir. Roch: —of the Supplementary Estimates under
Activity identification, it says at one point, provides
municipalities—it refers of course to the Manitoba
Services Board—it says, provides municipalities with
feasibility studies and sewer and water technical
financial assistance. Later on under Expected Results
it says, technical financial assistance plus loans as
applicable as well as feasibility studies will be provided
to municipalities for sewer and water treatment works.
Completed projects vary from nine to 15 per year. |
would like to ask the Minister what type of assistance
does he plan to make available to municipal bodies
for infrastructure improvements? We discussed that,
if yourecall, briefly under a different section, but it was
referred to this section where it was a more proper
area to ask these types of questions.

Mr. Penner: Mr. Chairman, the Liberal Party asks what
type of assistance we are going to provide to
communities. | am not sure what he is referring to,
whether he is referring to total amounts of monies
provided through Water Services Board to the various
communities or whether he is referring to percentage
cost sharing currently in place or whether he is referring
to some future proposals. Would he clarify that?

Mr. Roch: The reason | am asking that in this section
is because when we asked before it was felt that
infrastructure was more properly dealt with under
Manitoba Water Services Board. | suppose a question
could just as easily be asked under Rural Economic
Development, but what | am really basically asking is
that many communities now, because of the situation
with Rural Manitoba either due to declining population
to maintain what they have, or on the other hand to
those few areas which have substantially increasing
populations and where theyneed assistance in the areas
of lagoons and the areas of sewers, streets, water, when
| say water | mean town water, would the assistance
which is referred to in this particular portion of the
estimates have any kind of impact on those areas
wishing to expand or relocate lagoons for example?

Mr. Penner: Well, some of them certainly would. | can,
Mr. Chairman, table for you a document that indicates
fairly clearly what is happening currently in Manitoba
in that regard and what the amounts of money are to
the various communities that the Water Services Board
has in involvement with now. | am not able to expand
on what future involvement the Province will have if
that is what he is referring to. | think we have many,
many times indicated clearly that communities all across
Manitoba, especially in rural Manitoba, need the
financial ability to be able to provide the infrastructure
that is required in order to maintain the very townsites
in very many cases, and also to enhance employment
opportunities through industrial development and other
means. So basically the amounts of money that are
currently being expended by the province to these
communities is as indicated on the paper that you were
just given.

Mr. Roch: | would take it though then that given the
fact that there is under Other Expenditures, personnel
services, transportation, communication, et cetera, and
so on, | take it this is basically expenditures for
administrative purposes. Would the assistance referred
to be under the Section 12 which is Expenditures
Related to Capital?

Mr. Penner: It is under Capital on page 148 of the
main Estimates in Expenditures, and on page 64 in the
Supplementary Estimates.

Mr. Roch: Mr. Chairman, on a different topic, there
are several farmers, especially those on the river lots,
who have still not received long overdue drought
assistance cheques from Ottawa’s very complex
program for helping out those people that needed
drought assistance. According to page 56 in the
Supplementary Estimates, the last line under Expected
Results, it says, funds have been set aside for drought
related assistance if required. If there are any farmers
who are entitled to drought assistance from the federal
Government which have somehow been shortchanged,
are they entitled to any funds from this department?
Is that the $1.1 million which the Minister referred to
earlier in the Estimates process or is this a different
and segregated fund apart from the other one?

Mr. Penner: The $1.1 million that | referenced previously
in discussions during the Estimates debates were to
expand water supplies to those areas that had been
last year and were again this year affected by the
drought. It had nothing to do with the drought assistance
that was provided by the province and the federal
Government regarding crop shortages.

Mr. Roch: Then just to clarify, were these particular
funds which have been set aside for drought related
assistance if required, exactly what kind of criteria would
be needed, would someone need to meet, to be eligible
for these funds?

Mr. Penner: They were set aside, Mr. Chairman, to
expand water facilities such as truck loading facilities
in areas that did not have truck loading facilities, to
drill wells in areas and look for water in areas that
were short of water, to try and find sources of water,
identify them, and provide those sources of water for
communities.

Specifically, if you want a reference area that might
be similar in nature, it would be the West Lake area,
to provide to communities such as that, water by a
pipeline and another, but basically to supply a supply
of water to communities that have not got access to
good quality water.

Mr. Roch: Mr. Chairman, getting back to the people
who have been experiencing problems with getting their
drought assistance from the river lots, is there any
possibility that until the mixup, if you wish to call it
that, is it clear in Ottawa that they may be advanced
some funds temporarily through this fund, and that the
province can recoup its money through the federal
Minister responsible? The reason | ask is because it
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because we have opened now markets to the south of
us for oats products, for combines, for many other
things, the creation of 1,200 jobs in the forestry industry
by selling off a provincially-owned entity to a large
corporation which will expand way beyond their capacity
that we were talking about, and the creation of jobs
that we were talking about in a particle board plant in
Swan River. The jobs accrued to even of the activities
that will be enhanced in the Swan River area, and the
jobs created there will be in my estimation beyond
what a particle board plant could have provided in that
area.

So | ask the Honourable Member, if he is saying that
we should not have banked upon a large forestry
industry to provide the 1,200 jobs that that industry
will provide, whether we should not have entered into
secondary processing, whether we should not have
encouraged the establishment of a combine plant in
this province and many others. Because | say to the
Honourable Member, the Free Trade Agreement will
allow us to access 250 million people, the markets for
that we can supply there. Because after the Free Trade
Agreement comes into its full effect some 10 years
down the road, it will provide us with an opportunity
to very freely market into, into that hugely expanded
market.

Let me say to the Honourable Member that | am as
concerned as he is about the transportation cuts that
are being talked about by the federal Government. Our
Minister of Transportation has indicated very clearly to
these Chambers his concerns re the VIA cuts, re the
rail line abandonment that is being discussed in some
areas. We are as concerned as he is that the effects
of federal Government decisions to Manitobans,
especially rural Manitobans. Yes, we are looking at ways
to alleviate some of the economic hurt that will be
incurred by some of the smaller communities. Yes, we
are concerned when mining companies talk about
closing mine operations, although realizing full well that
as a resource, that as a non-renewal resource, that
when mines are open somewhere down the road mines
will be closed, because those resources do deplete and
everybody recognizes that will sometime in the future
happen.

However, the human concerns that are raised and
the social concerns that must be addressed when those
kinds of things happen 20 or 30 years down the road,
a Government must prepare for and so we have. |
believe that we are going to meet at the end of this
week, in Brandon, again to discuss in a much broader
forum the needs of rural Canadians. We will sit down
with our counterparts from western provinces as well
as some eastern provinces and discuss what needs to
be done by all levels of Government, federal, provincial
and municipal Governments, to address the needs of
our rural communities.

| believe that the initiative we took not too long ago—
and again it was a federal-provincial initiative—to put
some money into place, to do a study of what the needs
were in the Pembina Valley region for the supply of
water through the Agri-Food Agreement, is an indication
that we are concerned and that we want to look at
ways and means of assisting those communities to

address their needs, whether they be water or
infrastructure or other.

* (1740)

| say to the Honourable Member that, yes, we have
the same concerns he does, although we are more
optimistic than he is that the Free Trade Agreement
that we entered into will in the long term benefit
Manitobans far more than it will hurt them, as he said.
| say to him again, take the positive initiative and let
us not look at have not, let us not tell our communities
that we are have nots and that we cannot, and that
we will not, because these communities are looking for
some encouragement from those of us who are
supposed to be leaders in our community.

Mr. Plohman: Mr. Chairman, the Minister should
remember that words and optimism are not going to
get the results here at all, and platitudes. The fact is
he has to put in place meaningful programs that are
going to actually make a difference in rural areas. It
is not going to be enough to say positive things, and
it seems that is all he is able to say at this present
time, that he is optimistic and he has all of these good
things in his mind about what might happen. Really he
has not taken any meaningful action to reverse and
turn that trend around and to combat these disruptive
federal policies.

| am just saying to him the Free Trade Agreement,
in combination with all of the other things, will have
negative impacts on much of our rural areas because
we are not going to be able to subsidize, to establish
rural businesses to the extent that we could when we
were free from the agreement with the United States,
because anything we do will be viewed as an unfair
trade practice and would be countervailed by the U.S.
Government. We will not be able to, under this
agreement, establish for rural economic development
reasons, for regional economic development regions,
industries in many areas that need Government
assistance to get established in the first place.

| think it is going to work against us, and that is what
| am saying to the Minister, but that free trade debate
will be the subject of other debates in this House. The
issue is, though, one that he identifies as a lack of
confidence. | say to him, it is very difficult for rural
people to have any confidence in the future of their
communities and any confidence for their children to
remain in the rural communities and raise their families
there when federal Government policies are taking place
that are so destructive to our rural areas, one onslaught
after another hitting those communities.

The provincial Government, | am telling this Minister
now, is not doing enough to reverse that and to raise
to the attention the terrible impact that these are having
on our communities. He is not raising it with the federal
Government to the extent he should and he is not
putting in place programs to reverse it. That is what
he has to do, that is his challenge as Minister, and that
is what we expect from him, nothing less, whether it
is in agriculture processing, fish processing, forestry
processing, tourism. All of these areas have to be
developed and worked on in the future and | hope that
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this Minister will be putting more resources into the
rural economic development in the years ahead, not
less as he did this year, because there is no excuse
for it, what happened to this budget this year. It shows
a complete lack of priority, despite the words of the
Premier when he created this department and said this
is a priority.

Mr. Chairman: Item 10.(a)—pass; 10.(b)—pass;
10.(c)—pass.

Resolution No. 132: RESOLVED that there be granted
to Her Majesty a sum not exceeding $1,169,400 for
Rural Development, Rural Economic Development, for
the fiscal year ending the 31st day of March, 1990—
pass.

Mr.Penner: Mr. Chairman, with your permission | would
like to thank John McGuire for assisting in the Estimates
process, our Director for Rural Development.

Mr. Chairman: Clause No. 11. Conservation Districts
Authority, which provides assistance, financial and
otherwise, for program development and
implementation and co-ordinates or provides planning
services to conservation districts. Shall Clause 11.(a)
pass—the Honourable Member for Springfield.

Mr. Roch: Mr. Chairman, | realize we want to finish
this department by six o’clock. | just have a couple of
brief questions.

It mentions in the Expected Results that an increase
in new external dollars is expected to flow to local
conservation districts programs. | ask the Minister
where are those external dollars coming from and how
much is expected to flow?

Mr. Penner: Mr. Chairman, there are a number of areas
where through conservation initiatives in co-operation
with other agencies, such as Ducks Unlimited and other
agencies that contribute to conservation initiatives, |
think the one program that you might be familiar with,
that Ducks Unlimited has had substantial involvement
in is the Habitat Enhancement Land-use Program of
which we currently have a pilot project in the province
in the Shoal Lake area. It is working very, very effectively
to restore some of the wetlands in the province.

There are others that we could talk about. | think
The Pas, the Pasquia area is one that Ducks Unlimited
has been very involved and has spent quite some large
amounts of money in. So the federal agencies through
this soil accord, through the Agri-Food Agreement and
those kind of things, landowners in large part contribute
to conservation initiatives, so those outside agencies
are the ones that we are referring to.

Mr. Plohman: | just wanted to ask the Minister whether
he has any plans to establish additional conservation
districts and where they are. | understand there was
an Order-in-Council passed just recently for one that
has been in the works for sometime and has been
established.

Mr. Penner: The one that we passed an O/C on, it is
called the Pembina Conservation District and it is made

up of Municipalities of Thompson, Louise, Lorne, and
Thompson. There is another group that is currently
discussing the possibility of another one up in the Shoal
Lake area.

Mr. Plohman: The Minister mentions Shoal Lake area,
is there also any movement towards a district in the
west side of Lake Dauphin?

Mr. Penner: | believe, Mr. Chairman, that there is some
discussion going on in that area although it has not
progressed to the point where the upper Assiniboine
region has progressed to, so they are in the discussion
stages, but that is as far as | am aware of the progress
that has taken place.

Mr. Plohman: |s the Minister actively promoting the
development of conservation districts at the present
time, and is he prepared to provide funding for such
increases?

* (1750)

Obviously, when there is another district established,
it means that there is substantial amount of provincial
money that has to be added to the budget. This year
we see a very slight increase in the Conservations
District Authority budget. This does not involve the
capital dollars though | understand for the conservation
districts. This $433,000 is only for the salaries, and
$137,000 for other expenditures for operating; it really
is not the grants to the conservation districts. So in
that section you would not need additicnal dollars in
this section, but in the grants area you would need to
bring forward substantial increases. Does he see that
happening? Is he prepared to make that a priority of
the Government to deliver the funding because
obviously if he is going to create the expectations that
a district is going to be established, obviously he has
to be prepared to come forward with the funding.

Mr. Penner: Mr. Chairman, the initiative that we took
last year to do the land and water strategy across the
province was largely directed towards the establishment
of water policy, land policies, and also to listen to the
needs of people in areas of conservation and they were
clearly identified through that process.

What is apparent or what becarz very apparent
through that process that we needec: i ook at a fairly
broad-based conservation strategy, and that is what
we are in the process of looking at. We are looking at
re-organization within our department, and that might
well mean some realignments of programming in this
whole area of conservation and conservation initiatives.
| think it is clear that Manitobans have identified their
concerns about maintaining the natural resources, the
land and the water in such a way that it will be there
for future generations. It is our intent to make sure
that those kinds of programmings are integrated into
whatever future developments we encounter or incur.

Mr. Chairman: Clause 11.(b)—pass.

Resolution No. 133: RESOLVED that there be granted
to Her Majesty a sum not exceeding $433,000 for Rural
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Rural Development, Administration and Finance for the
fiscal year ending the 31st day of March, 1990—pass.

The hour being 6 p.m., | am interrupting the
proceedings ofthe Committee of Supply. The committee
will return at 8 p.m. this evening. Committee is recessed
until 8 p.m.
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